
 

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday August 14th 2025 7:30PM 

Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone 

Members Present:                                                       Members Absent:            1 

Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair)            Beth Wells (Alternate Member) 2 

Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair)         3 

Martin Whalen (Secretary) 4 

Allen Cockerline (Regular Member)                Staff Present 5 

Bob Riva (Regular Member)            Abby Conroy, Land Use Director (LUD) 6 

Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member)          Miles Todaro, Land Use Technical Specialist (LUTS) 7 

               Attorney Charles Andres, PZC Counsel 8 

Herbert Singleton, PZC Consulting Acoustical Engineer 9 

                                            10 

Brief Items and Announcements 11 

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum 12 

Chair Klemens called the Special Meeting to order at 7:31PM. A quorum was established with five regular 13 

members present and seated (Dr. Michael Klemens, Cathy Shyer, Martin Whalen, Allen Cockerline, Bob Riva). 14 

Alternate Member Dr. Danella Schiffer was also present. 15 

 16 

Motion: To approve the agenda. 17 

Made by Whalen, seconded by Cockerline. 18 

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor. 19 

 20 

2. Minutes of July 7, 2025 - pending 21 

3. Minutes of July 21, 2025 - pending 22 

4. Minutes of August 4, 2025 - pending 23 

5. Minutes of August 5, 2025 - pending 24 

 25 

Public Hearing - 6:30PM 26 

6. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road & 53 Wells 27 

Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 213.5) / Map 47/ Lot 2 & 28 

2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / Continue Hearing, Close By 09/09/2025 29 

 30 

The public hearing continued at 6:31PM. Chair Klemens provided an opening statement. He introduced 31 

himself, the commission members, Land Use Office (LUO) staff, the Commission’s Attorney Charles Andres, 32 

and the Commission’s Acoustical Engineer Herbert Singleton. LUTS Todaro listed the application documents 33 

added to the record since the last meeting. 34 

 35 

Attorney Perley Grimes explained a petition for intervenor status will be filed when it is completed and 36 

verified. Chair Klemens asked for their witnesses to present their findings at the meeting of August 19, 2025. 37 

Attorney Grimes was unable to commit to a date without first confirming their experts’ availability. Attorney 38 

Andres noted the public hearing must be closed by September 9, 2025 unless an extension was granted by the 39 

Applicant. Attorney Mackey said the Applicant was unable to commit to granting an extension. Chair Klemens 40 

announced the dates the Commission could potentially meet, including August 19th, August 26th, September 41 

4th, and September 9th. 42 

 43 

Greg Tocci of Cavanaugh Tocci Associates explained that sound levels were not analyzed on properties 44 

surrounding Wononscopomuc Lake because noise was not expected to be heard in those locations. He said 45 

the study’s goal was to analyze the highest levels of sound that nearby residents could hear. Mr. Tocci 46 



 

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday August 14th 2025 7:30PM 

Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone 

explained thermal stratification of the lake allowed sound to transmit across water faster on warm summer 47 

evenings. He said the average dBA level after midnight at the property was in the ninth percentile. 48 

 49 

Herbert Singleton of Cross-Spectrum Acoustics explained a written response would be submitted to the 50 

record. He also commented that modeling sound over a lake was difficult to accomplish as predicted sound 51 

levels vary widely. 52 

 53 

Steven Cohen of ARADEV LLC introduced a slide presentation with responses to questions from the 54 

Commission and public. Mr. Cohen said the Applicant was agreeable to restricting event times and newly 55 

reduced hours were presented. Mr. Cohen said the Applicant was agreeable to further reducing the project’s 56 

intensity. He provided a proposed condition of approval that the property would not have more than twenty-57 

four large events of one-hundred or more guests in a calendar year. Mr. Cohen said outdoor background 58 

music would be played at the pool and was included in the Wake Robin Inn Acoustical Analysis. 59 

 60 

Vice Chair Shyer asked where private events could be hosted at the proposed redevelopment. Mr. Cohen 61 

replied that private events required a contract and could be hosted in various different locations including the 62 

event space, restaurant, courtyard, or great lawn. Vice Chair Shyer asked if private events could be hosted in 63 

the cottages. Mr. Cohen replied no, the cottages would be booked through the hotel reservation system. 64 

 65 

Commissioner Cockerline asked for clarification regarding the size of this application versus the previous 66 

(withdrawn) application, in terms of number of rooms. Jonathan Marrale of ARADEV LLC said hotel rooms 67 

were reduced from seventy-one to fifty-seven, and cottages reduced from fourteen to four. 68 

 69 

Alternate Member Schiffer asked if there were any proposed scheduling restrictions for private events with 70 

less than one-hundred guests. Mr. Cohen replied no. Alternate Member Schiffer asked how many guests the 71 

current Wake Robin Inn motel building could accommodate. She clarified that she wanted to know if guest 72 

accommodations outside the principal hotel structure are proposed to be reduced, since the proposed 73 

cottages can house a total of twenty-four guests. 74 

 75 

Chair Klemens asked if the cottages were treated as a single occupancy unit in the Applicant’s calculations. Mr. 76 

Marrale replied yes, each cottage was considered one hotel suite. Chair Klemens asked why background music 77 

was featured in the proposed outdoor pool area. Mr. Marrale replied background music was considered a 78 

base hospitality feature. Chair Klemens asked if the single structure remaining on the Granbery parcel would 79 

be used as a cottage. Mr. Marrale replied no, the structure would be used for storage. Chair Klemens asked if 80 

the only purpose of the inclusion of the Granbery parcel is for a cottage and some storage. Mr. Marrale replied 81 

they believed the parcel also provided a beneficial buffer to neighboring properties. Chair Klemens asked for 82 

clarification why the Granbery parcel was an essential piece to the application. Mr. Marrale noted that they 83 

would respond in writing. Chair Klemens also asked for a written answer to what the noise level of the hotel 84 

operation would be if they were to use the property to the maximum extent possible in its current state as a 85 

legal nonconforming use.  86 

 87 

Chair Klemens opened the floor for comments and questions from the public. 88 

 89 

Member of the public Bill Colgan asked about the potential merger between 53 Wells Hill Road and 104 90 

Sharon Road. Mr. Colgan asked if merging the properties was pre-approved or included as part of the special 91 

permit process. He asked if the merger set a precedent of commercial merging with residential properties. 92 



 

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday August 14th 2025 7:30PM 

Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone 

LUD Conroy said a merger generally does not require approval, but the two parcels have two different 93 

permitted uses. She said as long as the merger of the lots would not result in increased non-conformity a 94 

merger can be done. 95 

 96 

Member of the public Julie Norwell asked who defined the term nuisance. Ms. Norwell mentioned a petition 97 

submitted with hundreds of signatures. Chair Klemens explained “nuisance” is part of Section 800 of the 98 

Zoning Regulations. As part of the special permit process, the Commission must determine whether the 99 

application fits into the surrounding neighborhood or creates a nuisance. 100 

 101 

Member of the public Rich Shanley believed the Commission made great effort to remain objective. Mr. 102 

Shanley believed the Commission should be willing to take subjective information from the public that the 103 

application is not suitable for the neighborhood. Mr. Shanley also commented that he did not believe the 104 

information provided by the State for the Traffic Study, which noted a decrease in traffic on Sharon Road since 105 

2006. 106 

 107 

Member of the public Greg Wilmore shared that he experienced disturbance from blasting during construction 108 

in November 2024. Mr. Wilmore mentioned hundreds of neighboring residents believed the large 109 

redevelopment would permanently impact the enjoyment and peacefulness of the surrounding community. 110 

He hoped the Commission would deny the application. 111 

 112 

Member of the public Bruce Palmer explained the Commission must determine whether the application has 113 

met legal requirements but he understands there is strong emotion involved. He believed the Applicant was 114 

thorough, responsive, and professional.    115 

 116 

Member of the public John Franchini expressed concern about the application due to its size and scale, but 117 

would not be opposed to a smaller redevelopment of the property. Mr. Franchini shared legal concerns about 118 

issues brought up by Attorney Capecelatro. He believed Attorney Mackey’s behavior was aggressive and 119 

assertive. He expressed concern that the Applicant may not remain the project operator and their promises in 120 

good faith would not be continued. He commented there was no enforcement mechanism for any restrictions 121 

promised by the Applicant. 122 

 123 

Member of the public Darryl Peck responded to Mr. Singleton’s comments and did not believe prevailing 124 

winds applied to the area of Lakeville. He thought twenty-four events per year was too many and that 125 

individual cottages should be counted as more than one hotel room due to their size. 126 

 127 

Member of the public Glen Kalison supported comments made by Mr. Franchini and noted enforcement was 128 

required for events that are hosted late and play loud music. He believed the Applicant should provide an 129 

enforcement operational plan to show how enforcement would be handled at the events. Mr. Kalison 130 

expressed additional concern about music playing daily at the outdoor pool. He believed traffic in the 131 

community had intensified at certain periods of the day. 132 

 133 

Member of the public Marilyn Moller expressed concern about outdoor tented events. Ms. Moller explained 134 

she had been previously disturbed by shouting and music at the existing Wake Robin Inn and believed outdoor 135 

amplified music should not be allowed in a residential neighborhood. She believed signs on the property 136 

would not keep guests quiet. Ms. Moller believed the application should be denied. 137 

  138 



 

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday August 14th 2025 7:30PM 

Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone 

Member of the public Leo Gafney referenced Section 803.2 of the Regulations which states the use shall not 139 

create a nuisance to neighboring properties whether by noise, air, water pollutants, offensive odors, smoke, 140 

lighting, or other effects. Mr. Gafney believed neighbors have referred to multiple concerns that match the 141 

definition of nuisance. 142 

 143 

Member of the public Aimee Bell asked who would keep track of the number of events per year at the 144 

property. Ms. Bell believed events would continue past the 11:00PM curfew as afterparties could continue at 145 

the large cottages. She said there may be difficulty locating a manager to monitor the redevelopment. Ms. Bell 146 

believed the application should be denied. 147 

 148 

Member of the public Barbara Hockstader asked why opinions from the Intervener’s experts were 149 

disregarded. She commented that Bennett Brooks Acoustic Corporation concluded the Special Permit 150 

application must be compared to the current use and existing conditions of the property and surrounding 151 

neighborhood. Ms. Hockstader believed the application does not meet the Special Permit requirements. She 152 

said Roger Rawlings concluded that traffic would increase on Wells Hill Road and Sharon Road, and be a 153 

negative factor on assessed property values. She said the Applicant’s experts would alter their conclusions to 154 

allude that the redevelopment does not have adverse effects on the neighborhood. 155 

 156 

Member of the public Greg Kalison reiterated that Elyse Harney provided testimony that nearby property 157 

values would decrease. Mr. Kalison asked how the Granbery property would be utilized as a buffer between 158 

the redevelopment and their abutting property. 159 

 160 

Member of the public John Franchini believed the application would be an expansion of a non-conforming use 161 

and should not be permitted. Mr. Franchini believed the size of the redevelopment and sound emitting from 162 

the facility would result in nuisances. He encouraged the applicant to construct their project in a non-163 

residential area of Town. 164 

 165 

Tabled Business 166 

8. #2025-0295 / 235 Belgo Road, LLC / 235 Belgo Road / Vertical Expansion of a Nonconforming Barn Proposed 167 

for Conversion to Single Family Residence (Section 503.2) / Map 9 / Lot 9 / DOR:07/21/2025 / Public Hearing 168 

Scheduled 08/18/2025 at 6:45PM 169 

 170 

Motion: To continue the public hearing on August 19, 2025 at 6:30PM via Zoom. 171 

Made by Riva, seconded by Whalen. 172 

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor. 173 

 174 

Adjournment 175 

The meeting adjourned at 9:19pm.  176 

 177 

 178 

Respectfully Submitted, 179 

Erika Spino 180 

Secretary of Minutes 181 


